Brackendale Farmers Institute (#3058 BC Farmers Institute)

Farmers and Women's Institute Act and Regulation

1. Incorporation and name

- 1.1 The Superintendent of Farmers' Institutes shall, after receiving the constitution and bylaws submitted by the subscribers, incorporate the institute by placing the words "Incorporated Under The Farmers and Women's Institutes Act" on the original version of the constitution followed by his signature.
- 1.2 The constitution shall be signed by at least 5 subscribers and those signatures shall be witnessed.
- 3. The superintendent shall not incorporate an institute unless its proposed name includes the words "Farmers' Institute" or "Women's Institute" as the case may be.

2. Constitution and bylaws

- 2.1 Subject to subsection 1.2 and section 12, the constitution and bylaws of an institute shall be those set out in Schedules 1 and 2 respectively.
- 2.2 The subscribers of an institute may submit a constitution or bylaws that differ from those in Schedules 1 and 2. And where the superintendent considers that the constitution or bylaws are consistent with the spirit of the Act he may incorporate the institute and the constitution and bylaws of it shall be those submitted by the subscribers.

3. Motto and colours

3.1 The motto of the Women's Institutes is "For Home and Country" and the colours are green, white and gold.

4. District institutes

- 4.1 A district institute shall consist of all of the farmers' or women's institutes located within the geographical area designated under section 25 (1) of the Act.
- 4.2 Members of a district institute need not pay a fee to that district institute
- 5. Voting at Meetings of the District Institutes

5.1 A member of a local institute may vote at a meeting of a district institute within whose district the local institute is located.

6. Membership fee

- 6.1 The bylaws of an institute, other than a district institute, shall provide that an annual membership fee of at least 50¢ is payable
- 6.1.1 at the beginning of each fiscal year for existing members, and
- 6.1.2 at the time of becoming a member, for new members.

7. Directors' meetings

7.1 The directors shall hold a Directors' meeting once every three (3) months unless it is impractical to do so.

8. Annual general meeting

8.1 The annual general meeting of an institute shall be held not later than three (3) months after the end of the fiscal year.

9. Annual reports

- 9.1 The secretary of each Farmers Institute shall file an annual report to the superintendent, on the form provided by him, within seven (7) days after the annual general meeting.
- 9.2 The secretary of each women's institute shall deliver an annual report to the secretary treasurer of the British Columbia Provincial Board of the BC Women's Institute, on the form provided by the superintendent, within seven (7) days after the annual general meeting. And she shall file all of the annual reports with the superintendent.

10. Inspection of books and accounts

10.1 Each member of an institute, the superintendent or a person designated by the superintendent has the right to inspect the records of the institute.

11. Ministerial assistance

11.1 The minister may refuse to provide assistance to an institute where it has contravened the Act or this regulation.

12. Transitional

- 12.1 Where, an Institute has in place a standard form constitution or bylaws that have not been amended since the Institute's incorporation; on the coming into force of this regulation, an Institute shall be deemed to have a new constitution and bylaws as set out in Schedules 1 and 2.
- 12.2 Where, after its incorporation, an institute has amended its constitution, which constitution shall remain in force in the form that it was amended.
- 12.3 Where, after its incorporation, an institute has amended its bylaws, those bylaws shall remain in force in the form that they were amended.

Schedule 1 Constitution OF THE BRACKENDALE FARMERS INSTITUTE

We, the undersigned, hereby declare that we desire to form an institute under the Farmers and Women's Institutes Act, R.S.B.C., 1996, c. 133, and that

- 1. The name of the institute is "The Brackendale Farmers Institute."
- 2. The **objects** of the institute are as follows:
- 2.1 to improve conditions of rural life so that settlement may be permanent and prosperous;
- 2.2 to promote the theory and practice of agriculture;
- 2.3 to arrange on behalf of its members for the purchase, distribution or sale of commodities, supplies or products;
- 2.4 **2.3**to act generally on behalf of its members in all matters incidental to agricultural pursuits and rural development;
- 2.5 2.4to promote home economics, public health, child welfare, education and better schools.

5. Each year to organize a fall fair

The **operations** of the institute are to be chiefly carried on in Brackendale BC

	FULL NAME	ADDRESS	OCCUPATI ON
Subscriber	N Candy	Box 48, Brackendale	Contractor

Witness	T Froslev	Box 100, Brackendale	
Subscriber	W. Berg	Box 1036,Bracken dale	Storekeeper
Witness	T Froslev	Box 100, Brackendale	
Subscriber	F D Ross	Box 7, Brackendale	Beekeeper
Witness	T Froslev	Box 100, Brackendale	
Subscriber	B Giles	Box 314, Brackendale	Realtor
Witness	T Froslev	Box 100, Brackendale	
Subscriber	Thor Froslev	Box 100, Brackendale	Art Gallery
Witness	Brian D Giles	Box 314, Brackendale	

Date: Nov 28,1991 Incorporated Dec 4, 1991 Signatories D E Read,

Schedule 2 Bylaws of The Brackendale Farmers Institute

1. Membership

- 1.1 The members of the institute are the subscribers of the constitution and the persons admitted to membership in accordance with these bylaws.
- 1.2 Every person desiring to become a member of the institute shall
- 1.2.1 apply to the secretary,
- 1.2.2 agree to conform to and abide by the bylaws of the institute and regulations made under the Farmers and Women's Institutes Act, and
- 1.2.3 pay the annual membership dues.
- 1.3 A family is entitled to join a Farmers' institute as a family, but only one adult member of the family is entitled to vote at a meeting of the institute.

2. Membership fees and voting

2.1.1 at the beginning of each fiscal year **annual general meeting** for existing members, and

- 2.1.2 at the time of becoming a member, for new members.
- 2.2 A member whose annual membership fee is unpaid is not entitled to hold office as a director or officer or to vote at any general meeting.
- 2.3 A member is not entitled to vote by proxy.

2.4 Any changes to the fee must have a majority vote.

2.5 A new member is not entitled to vote at any general meeting of the institute until he has been a member of the institute for at least fourteen (14) days.

3. Funds

3.1 The funds of the institute shall be devoted, solely, to the promotion of the objects of the institute, as set out in the constitution.

4. Fiscal year

- 4.1 Subject to subsection 4.2, The fiscal year of an institute commences on January 1 and ends on December 31.
- 4.2 The fiscal year of a local, women's institute commences on September 1 and ends on August 31.

5. Directors and officers

- 5.1 The institute shall have five (5) seven (7) directors including the president, the vice president, the secretary and the treasurer.
- 5.2 The president, the vice president, the secretary, the treasurer and the other directors shall be elected at the annual general meeting of the institute and the vote shall be by a show of hands, unless a majority of members present require the vote to be by secret ballot.
- 5.3 The president, the vice president, the secretary, the treasurer and the other directors hold office until the end of the annual general meeting at which their successors are elected.
- 5.4 The directors may appoint a secretary and a treasurer who need not be directors.

- 5.5 The remuneration, if any, of the secretary and treasurer, shall be determined by the institute at a general meeting.
- **5.6 5.4** the president shall preside at all meetings of the directors and of the institute, and when he is absent or unable or unwilling to act the vice president shall act in his place.
- 5.7 **5.5** Casual vacancies among the officers or directors shall be filled by the remaining directors; until the next annual general meeting, and the secretary shall notify
- 5.7.1 the superintendent, in the case of a farmers' institute, or
- 5.7.2 the provincial secretary treasurer, in the case of a women's institute, of all casual vacancies that have been filled.
- **5.8 5.6** in any case where the secretary or treasurer ceases to act, the president or vice president shall perform his duties until the vacancy is filled.
- **5.9 5.7** the quorum at a meeting of directors shall be not less than half the total number of directors.
- **5.10 5.8** the directors control the affairs of the institute and shall outline the work and the policies of the institute and present the policies to the members for their approval.

6. Borrowing power

6.1 The directors shall not borrow moneys in the name of the institute without an extraordinary resolution approving the borrowing

7. Duties of secretary

- 7.1 The secretary shall
- 7.1.1 keep minutes of all meetings,
- 7.1.2 conduct the correspondence of the institute,
- 7.1.3 keep a register of the members, with their names and addresses, and
- 7.1.4 prepare and forward reports to
- 7.1.4.1 the superintendent, in the case of a farmers' institute, or

7.1.4.2 the provincial secretary treasurer, in the case of a women's institute on forms supplied by the superintendent.

8. Duties of treasurer

- 8.1 The treasurer or the secretary of the institute shall, at each general meeting, account for all moneys paid or received by the institute and present a report to the members present, but no disbursements shall be made without the permission of the directors.
- 8.2 The treasurer or the secretary shall prepare the annual financial statements of the institute made up to the end of the fiscal year.

9. Annual and general meetings

- 9.1 The president or any two (2) directors may convene a special general meeting, and on a meeting being convened the secretary shall notify all members of the time and place where the meeting shall be held.
- 9.2 The secretary shall give seven (7) clear days notice in writing of the date, time and place of every annual or every special general meeting to every member at his recorded address. And the secretary shall, when directed by the directors, advertise the meeting by the means that the directors determine.
- 9.3 If an annual or special general meeting is not held on the day specified in the notice calling it; then it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the following week at the same time and place. And if it were not then held, the directors shall call a fresh meeting.
- 9.4 At an annual or a special general meeting the quorum is five (5) members.
- 9.5 At the annual general meeting the institute shall elect appoint an auditor.
- 9.6 The directors shall, at the annual general meeting, present a written annual report of the affairs of the institute for the past year stating the number of meetings of the institute, and the attendance at each. The report will be accompanied by a financial statement to the end of the fiscal year, audited and certified by the auditor.
- 9.7 The secretary shall forward a copy of the annual report and the financial statement to the superintendent after it has been presented, together with a list of the directors and officers who were elected at the meeting.
- 9.8 The order of proceedings at an annual general meeting shall, according to circumstances, be as follows:

- 9.8.1 call to order
- 9.8.2 reading of convening notice
- 9.8.3 reading and disposing of minutes of preceding meeting
- 9.8.4 business arising out of minutes
- 9.8.5 reports have standing and special committees
- 9.8.6 reports of directors and auditors
- 9.8.7 election of directors and auditors
- 9.8.8 special business
- 9.8.9 unfinished business
- 9.8.10 new business
- 9.9 General meetings shall be held each month in conjunction the Director's meetings with the exception of December. A quorum of directors must be present.

10. COMMITTEES

10.1 FALL FAIR COMMITTEE

- 10.1.1 the chairman for the fall fair committee shall be appointed each year.
- 10.1.2 Meetings for planning the fall fair shall be held (6) weeks prior to the fall fair and each week following to the date of the fall fair. Other meetings may be held prior to this time as needed. A debriefing meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the fall fair.
- 10.1.3 the fall fair shall be held the first Saturday in September unless it is impractical to do so.

10.2 SPECIAL COMMITTEES

10.2.1 the directors may set up special committees as may be deemed necessary to carry out a project or program. All committees shall automatically be discharged

immediately on the completion of the their functions.

10. 11. Expulsion

- **10.1 11.1** The institute may expel from membership, on a three fourths (3/4) majority vote of the members present at a general meeting, any member against whom an allegation has been made of conduct that is detrimental to the institute.
- **10.2 11.2** The allegation shall be in writing and be signed by at least two (2) members in good standing. Further more the member against whom the charge has been made shall be given at least two (2) weeks notice, in writing, of the day, time, and place the matter will be considered by the Institute.
- **10.3 11.3** Subsections 10.1 and 10.2 apply to the expulsion of officers and directors.
- **11. 12.** Custody of seal, records and other books of the institute
- **11.1 12.1** The records and other books of the institute shall be in the custody of the secretary or treasurer and may be inspected by the directors or by any person appointed by the superintendent.
- **11.2 12.2** the records and books of the Institute; may be inspected by members at the close of any general meeting.

12. 13. Amendment of bylaws

- **12.1 13.1** these bylaws may not be altered or added to except by an extraordinary resolution of the institute.
- **12.2 13.2** where an Institute amends its bylaws, it shall submit a copy of the amendment to the superintendent for his approval.

The BFI Constitution and Bylaws was last amended in 1991.